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NOTICE TO PROPOSERS 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) FOR LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

PREPARATION SERVICES (COMPREHENSIVE UPDATE) 

 

 

The purpose of this Addendum is to summarize the list of questions received by all 

Proposers and to provide the City’s responses to those questions.  

 

1. Question: Does Laguna Niguel currently have an LHMP, if so, can it be provided? 

a. Response 

Yes, the City currently has an existing but outdated LHMP. This plan is 

available for reference. Please see Attachment A.  

 

2. Question: Is there an insurance checklist of requirements that can be provided? 

b. Response 

Please see page 36 in the RFP. 

 

3. Question: What is the budget for this effort? 

a. Response 

Currently the project is grant funded, and the grant amount designated for 

hiring a consultant is $72,000.  

 

4. Question: Is there a page limit for the response? 

a. Response 

There is not a page limit. However, the consultant is responsible for 

preparing an effective, clear, well-organized, and concise formal written 

Proposal.  

 

5. Question: How will the evaluation criteria on page 13 of the RFP be weighted? 

 



 

a. Response 

Review Criteria Criteria Weight 

1. Prior Experience & Client References 15 points 

2. Proposed Personnel 20 points 

3. Proposed Project Schedule 25 points 

4. Project Design & Methodology 15 points 

5. Fee Schedule  25 points 

Total 100 points 

  

6. Question: Are the public meetings intended to be held in-person or virtually? 

a. Response 

The public meetings are intended to be held in-person. However, if further 
COVID-19 precautions are implemented to limit public gatherings, the meetings 
will be held virtually.  

 

7. Question: Would the City prefer monthly meetings with the Hazard Mitigation 

Planning Committee or some other cadence? Are these meetings preferred to be 

held virtually, in-person, or a mix of the two?   

a. Response 

Meetings with the Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee may be held on 

an as-needed basis. Currently, the meetings are preferred to be held in-

person, but virtual meetings are acceptable depending on the subject 

matter.  

 

8. Question: Can you confirm that you are expecting to complete the project in 6-

months (Jan-Jun); including all public meetings, Cal OES/FEMA approval process, 

and the City adoption process? 

a. Response 

Currently, the City’s grant period is set to expire on June 20, 2022. However, 
the City intends to submit a request to extend the grant period in January 2022.  
 

9. Question: Can you clarify how many (and which) Special Districts and Private 

Agencies are seeking adoption of the plan? 

a. Response 

At this time, no Special Districts and Private Agencies are involved in the 
adoption process.  
 

10. Question: Can you clarify the source, the total amount of the FEMA grant, and the 

amount of the FEMA grant dedicated to the consultant?  

a. Response 

The total grant amount is $96,000. The grant amount designated for hiring 

a consultant is $72,000 (Federal share).  



 

 
11. Question: Do you want consultants to follow your four (4) phased approach or can 

they suggest a different methodology that includes the phases but organized in a 

different manner? 

a. Response 

In order to evaluate all proposals in a consistent manner, the City wants all 
consultants to follow the four phased approach. However, consultants may also 
submit an alternative schedule so long as a fee schedule is also provided for 
the alternative approach.   
 

12. Question: Do you have a georeferenced extract of the County Assessor (parcel-

level) data or something similar for the City and are you able to share the data? If 

so, can you also clarify what data fields are included? 

a. Response 

The City has a parcel layer with information on lot size, zoning, general plan, 
owner information, flood zone, and fuel mod requirement. The City will share 
the data with the selected consultant.  
 

13. Question: The City is requesting the consultant to submit an example of similar 

projects. Are there alternative methods to meet this requirement (i.e., providing a 

link or identifying a point of contact?  

a. Response 

As stated in the RFP, the Consultant must provide one (1) copy of a similar 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, or comparable report, Consultant has completed 
that is closely related to the Scope of Work contemplated in the RFP. A link 
may be provided, but it will be Consultant’s responsibility to ensure the link is 
functional and available for the City’s review.  
 

14. Question: Is there flexibility to waive the auto, errors/omissions, and cyber liability 

insurance requirements?  

a. Response 

The Proposer may include with its Proposal, in writing, any conditions or 
exceptions requested by the Proposer to the proposed Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Attachment A - City of Laguna Niguel’s LHMP 

 
































